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US DISTHICE POURT
DISTRIGT OF NEBRASKA
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT SEP 2 4 2021
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEBRASKA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, OFFICE OF THE CLERK

Plaintiff, 821CR

VS.
INDICTMENT

OLIVER J. GLASS, 18 U.S.C. § 2261A(2)(B)

Defendant.

At al

1.

2.

The Grand Jury charges that
] times material to this Indictment:
On or about March 28, 2009, defendant, Oliver J. Glass, married Victim 1.
Defendant, Oliver J. Glass, was appointed as the County Attorney for Dodge County,
Nebraska in 2011. Defendant, Oliver J. Glass, was elected County Attorney for Dodge
County, Nebraska in 2014 and was reelected in 2018,
On November 16, 2018, Victim 1 filed a Complaint for Legal Separation from defendant,
Oliver J. Glass, in the District Court of Dodge County, Nebraska in case number CI 18-
586.
In October 2019, Victim 1 met Victim 2. Victim 1 and Victim 2 began dating in
approximately December 2019.
On January 3, 2020, Victim 1 filed an Amended Complaint for Dissolution of Marriage in
the District Court of Dodge County, » iraska.
On or about March 6, 2020, defendant, Oliver J. Glass, learned that Victim | was in a

romantic relationship with Victim 2.
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7.

10.

11.

In March 2021, defendant, Oliver J. Glass, resigned from his position as the Dodge County
Attorney.

COURSE OF CONDUCT

Beginning on March 6, 2020, continuing through on or about December 22, 2020,
defendant, Oliver J. Glass, used facilities of interstate commerce to engage in a course of
conduct meant to harass and intimidate and to place under surveillance with the intent to
harass and intimidate Victim 1 and Victim 2.

Law Enforcement Database Use
The Nebraska Criminal Justice Information System (NCJIS) is an Internet-based, law
enforcement database that Nebraska criminal justice professionals can utilize in their
official capacities to search for and view criminal justice and personal information of
individuals who reside in, are employed in, or have criminal histories in the state of
Nebraska. NCJIS is limited to official law enforcement purposes, pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the state of Nebraska and the Nebraska Crime Commission.
Defendant, Oliver J. Glass, had access to NCJIS pursuant to his position as the Dodge
County Attorney. Additionally, the individual staff of the Dodge County Attorney’s Office
also had NCJIS access. Between January 1, 2020, through March 5, 2020, defendant,
Oliver J. Glass, did not successfully access NCIJIS.
Beginning on March 6, 2020, through on or about December 22, 2020, defendant, Oliver
J. Glass, and two other employees of the Dodge County Attorney’s Office acting at
defendant, Oliver J. Glass’s, direction, used their official credentials to access the NCIIS
database and view information related to Victim 2, including vehicle registration data and

other personal information. This was done on approximately 16 different occasions.
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15.

16.

17.

Defendant, Oliver J. Glass, made comments to law enforcement officers about killing
Victim 1 and Victim 2. Specifically, on May 27, 2020, defendant, Oliver J. Glass, sent text
messages to a female law enforcement officer with the Nebraska State Patrol, “God help
me I may f**king kill this guy,” and “I am so mad right now 1 could kill them both.”
Multiple law enforcement officers reported that they believed defendant, Oliver J. Glass,
may harm Victim 1 and Victim 2.

Physical Surveillance
Detendant, Oliver J. Glass, used the information that he and two of his employees had
obtained from NCIIS to surveil Victim 1 and Victim 2 by driving by Victim 2’s residence.
Detfendant, Oliver J. Glass, took photographs of Victim 1’s vehicle at Victim 2’s residence.
These photos were then transmitted to and stored on defendant, Oliver J. Glass’s, Apple
1Cloud account.
Defendant, Oliver J. Glass, sent text messages to others documenting the physical
surveillance that defendant, Oliver J. Glass, was conducting regarding Victim 1 and Victim
2. Specifically, defendant, Oliver J. Glass sent the following:

a. On March 9, 2020, defendant, Oliver J. Glass sent a text message to an employee
of the Dodge County Attorney’s Office stating, “Just drove by military on way
home. [Victim 1] got off work at 3:00. [Victim 1] over at [Victim 2’s] house
already. Doesn’t give two sh**s about seeing the kids.”

b. On May 28, 2020, defendant, Oliver J. Glass sent a text message statii ~ “Heading

home. [Victim 2’s] white car is parked at his sh**hole apt.”
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27.

28.

30.

a. Defendant, Oliver J. Glass, used the Internet to access NCJIS to obtain vehicle
information, address information, and personal information of Victim 2;
b. Defendant, Oliver J. Glass, used the Internet to send Facebook Messages to Victim
2;
c. Defendant, Oliver J. Glass, used his cellular phone to make calls or send text
messages to Victim 2;
d. Defendant, Oliver J. Glass, used his cellular phone to make calls and send text
messages to members of law enforcement about Victim 1 and Victim 2.
COUNT I
Paragraphs 1 through 26 of the Indictment are incorporated by reference as if fully set
forth herein.
Beginning on or about March 6, 2020, continuing through on or about December 22,
2020, in the District of Nebraska, defendant, Oliver J. Glass, with the intent to intimidate
and harass and place under surveillance with intent to intimidate and harass another
person, to wit: Victim 1, used facilities of interstate commerce to engage in a course of
conduct that caused, attempted to cause, and would be reasonably expected to cause
substantial emotional distress to Victim 1.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2261A(2)(B)

COUNT I

~

.Par aphs 1 through ™ of the Indictment are incorporated by reference as if fully set

forth herein.
Beginning on or about March 6, 2020, continuing through on or about December 22,
2020, in the District of Nebraska, defendant, Oliver J. Glass, with the intent to intimidate

and harass and place under surveillance with intent to intimidate and harass another
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person, to wit: Victim 2, used facilities of interstate commerce to engage in a course of
conduct that caused, attempted to cause, and would be reasonably expected to cause
substantial emotional distress to Victim 2.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2261 A(2)(B)
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The United States of America requests that trial of this case be held in Omaha, Nebraska,
pursuant to the rules of this Court.

Dot £L000-

SEAN P. LYNCH, #25275
Assistant United States Attorney




